NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

Pursuant to Section 54954.2 of the Government Code of the State of California, a Regular meeting of the **TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMISSION** is hereby called for:

Date/Time: Thursday, January 9, 2020, 7:00 p.m.

(or as soon thereafter as possible)

Location: Tracy Transit Station, Room 103

50 East 6th Street, Tracy

Government Code Section 54954.3 states that every public meeting shall provide an opportunity for the public to address the Commission on any item, before or during consideration of the item, however, no action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda.

MEETING AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Items from the Audience In accordance with <u>Procedures for Preparation, Posting and Distribution of Agendas and the Conduct of Public Meetings</u>, adopted by Resolution 2015-052, any item not on the agenda brought up by the public at a meeting shall be automatically referred to staff. If staff is not able to resolve the matter satisfactorily, the member of the public may request a Commission Member to sponsor the item for discussion at a future meeting.
- 4. Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting on December 12, 2019.
- 5. New Business
 - a. Receive Information and Provide Input on the New Lease Agreement and Rate Structure for the Privately Owned Hangars at Tracy Municipal Airport, and Recommend Approval by City Council
 - b. Provide Updates on Commission Goals and Objectives for FY19/20
- Items from the Commission
- 7. Items from Staff
 - a. Airport Projects Update
 - b. Transit Ridership and Performance Update
- 8. Items from the Audience
- 9. Adjournment

POSTED: December 31, 2019

The City of Tracy complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act and makes all reasonable accommodations for the disabled to participate in public meetings. Persons requiring assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate should call City Hall at (209) 831-6000 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Any materials distributed to the majority of the Transportation Advisory Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City of Tracy Transit Station located at 50 East 6th Street, Tracy, during normal business hours.

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

December 12. 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER: Commissioner Silva called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL:

a. Present: Alice English (arrived at 7:04PM), Gary Cooper, Jacob Hunter (left at

8:14PM), Rajnish Khanna (arrived at 7:04PM), Tim Silva, Roderick

Stevenson (arrived at 7:06PM, left at 8:27PM), Alvin Vaughn

b. Absent:

c. Staff Present: Ed Lovell, Management Analyst II; Paula Jessup, Airport Manager;

Jayne Pramod, Transportation Coordinator.

d. Recorded By: Jayne Pramod, Transportation Coordinator

3. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE: None

4. APPROVAL OF REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 14, 2019

a) Motion to Approve: Commissioner Cooperb) Second: Commissioner Vaughn

c) Abstain: None

d) Vote: Approved by unanimous vote

5. NEW BUSINESS:

a. Receive Presentation and Provide Input on Downtown Transit Oriented Development Project: Scott Claar, Senior Planner, City of Tracy, and Martti Eckert of De Novo Planning Group, presented to the Commission on the Downtown Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Project, and solicited feedback from the commissioners. They addressed questions and concerns regarding the project. Commission thanked them for presenting.

6. ITEMS FROM COMMISSION:

<u>Commissioner English</u>: provided information on Wreaths Across America, will be at Tracy Public Cemetery on Saturday, December 19, 2020 at 12:00 PM, to remember and honor our veterans.

7. ITEMS FROM AUDIENCE: None

8. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 9, 2020

a. Motion to Adjourn: Commissioner Vaughnb. Second: Commissioner Cooper

c. Vote: Approved by unanimous vote

d. Time: 8:39 p.m.

The above agenda was posted at Tracy City Hall on December 5, 2019. The above are action minutes. A full recording of the meeting is available by contacting the City Clerk's Office.

CITY OF TRACY TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING January 9, 2020

AGENDA ITEM 5.a

REQUEST

RECEIVE INFORMATION AND PROVIDE INPUT ON THE NEW LEASE AGREEMENT AND RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE PRIVATELY OWNED HANGARS AT TRACY MUNICIPAL AIRPORT, AND RECOMMEND APPROVAL BY CITY COUNCIL.

DISCUSSION

Tracy Municipal Airport is home to twenty-five (25) ground lease tenants. Each of these tenants have been under a month-to-month agreement as their original lease terms have expired. Over the past eight (8) months, airport management, an airport hangar committee, tenants, and the City Attorney's Office have collaborated to create an agreement that would best benefit the City, the airport, and tenants.

Key changes in the ground lease agreement are as follows:

- Change the CPI region used for rate adjustments from San Francisco to Western Region automatically
- Increase Insurance requirements to reflect current standards
- Change process of resale of hangars
- Add a reversion clause into the terms for those circumstances that deem it necessary
- Create a Required Sublease Provisions document to ensure a set standard for all subleases on the airport that will now be on file at the City Clerk's office.
- Initiate an Electric surcharge to offset costs incurred by the airport for utilities in privately owned hangars

FISCAL IMPACT

The current ground lease rate ranges from 4.8 cents/square foot to 5.5 cents/square foot. As part of the new ground lease, the rates would increase a half of a cent each year over a four-year period resulting in an increase to the Airport Fund of \$8,473.32 in Hangar Rental Revenue. Beginning in 2025, and in all subsequent odd numbered years, the current base rate will automatically adjust by the CPI for the Western Region. Exhibit B in the Ground Lease Agreement summarizes the rate increases that will occur each year of the ground lease.

RECOMENDATION

That the Commission receive information and provide input on the new lease agreement and rate structure for the privately owned hangars at Tracy Municipal Airport, and recommend approval by City Council.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Ground Lease Agreement

CITY OF TRACY GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATELY OWNED HANGAR AND AIRCRAFT STORAGE

	THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (Lease) is made this day of day of the second s
	RECITALS
	A. WHEREAS, Lessor owns and operates an airport commonly known as the [Insert name of airport] (the "Airport"), and
	B. WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease a portion of the Airport for the purpose of building and maintaining an aircraft hangar and for the storage of aircraft, and
	C. WHEREAS, Lessee has read and understands the rules and regulations that apply to the Airport;
	NOW THEREFORE, incorporating the foregoing Recitals herein, the Parties mutually agree as follows:
1.	PREMISES
	1.1 <u>DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES</u> : Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor a portion of Lessor's real property described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein, hereinafter referred to as the "Premises," property located at hangar space #
	1.2 <u>CONDITION OF PREMISES</u> : Lessee has inspected the Premises and knows the extent and condition thereof and accepts same in its present condition, subject to and including all defects, latent or patent.
	At commencement of the term specified in Section 2 below, the Premises shall be paved and in good condition. Lessee shall slurry seal hangar area prior to construction of hangar. This provision shall not be applicable to previously constructed hangars or those with concrete floors.

Lessee will keep and maintain the Premises, improvements and fixtures in a clean, safe and orderly condition at all times. Lessee shall not commit or suffer to be committed any waste upon the Premises, improvements, and fixtures or commit or allow any nuisance or other act which may disturb or interfere with the Airport, its surroundings, the departure and arrival of aircraft, or other aircraft operations and uses. If Lessee shall fail to perform the obligations under this paragraph, after thirty (30) days' written notice setting forth such failure, then Lessor shall have the right to perform the same and to charge Lessee therefore, and Lessee shall pay the Lessor such costs upon Lessor's demand. Noncompliance and/or non-payment by Lessee shall constitute a breach of this Lease. The making of such repairs or performance of maintenance by Lessor shall in no event be construed as a waiver of the duty of Lessee to make repairs or perform maintenance as provided in this paragraph. Lessee shall not alter the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent except as herein set forth. If Lessor so consents, then alterations shall be made at the sole cost and expense of the Lessee.

1.3 OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS: All privately-owned portable hangars shall remain the property of Lessee during the term of this Lease agreement; provided however, that if Lessee is no longer able to maintain the hangar due to unforeseen circumstances, Lessee may request that the hangar revert to the Lessor in accordance with Section 2.3. At the end of the Lease term, or any renewal thereof, Lessee may remove the privately-owned hangar so long as the Lease has not been terminated by the Lessor due to a default by Lessee, in which case the Lessor shall have a lien on the hangar in an amount that fully satisfies Lessee's obligation under the Lease.

2. TERM

- 2.1 The term of the Lease shall be 20 years from the date this Lease is executed (the "Initial Term"), unless extended through the options described herein or sooner terminated as provided in this Lease:
 - 2.1.1. <u>OPTION TO EXTEND INITIAL TERM</u>: Lessee shall have the option to extend the Initial Term of this Lease for two 10 year periods. Lessee shall provide Lessor with sixty (60) days' written notice of its intent to extend the Initial Term. No extension to the Initial Term of this Lease shall be granted by Lessor if Lessee is in default of any term of this Lease and has not cured said default as provided in Section 15.
- 2.2. <u>REMOVAL</u>: Lessee may remove said aircraft hangar from the Airport within ninety (90) days. Lessee shall continue to pay the rent then in effect during said ninety-day period.
- 2.3. <u>REVERSION</u>: Hangar may become the property of the City of Tracy at the request of the Lessee.
- 2.4. <u>HOLDING OVER</u>: Any holding over by Lessee past the term of this Lease shall not be deemed a renewal or extension of the term of this Lease.

3. RENT

- 3.1 <u>RENT:</u> Lessee shall pay to Lessor, as rent, the sum of \$_____ per month on the first day of each month for which it is due, beginning on the date term commences and continuing during the term. The rent is calculated as _____ per square foot with the square footage of hangar being _____. Rent for any partial month shall be prorated at the rate of 1/30th of the monthly rate for each day. All rent shall be paid to Lessor at the address to which notices to Lessor are given, as specified in Section 16 below. Lease rates are set by resolution of the City Council. The rental rates are set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto.
- 3.2 <u>RENT ADJUSTMENTS</u>: Lessee shall pay to Lessor as additional rent a cost of living adjustment computed annually as follows: On July 1 of each year, regardless of the commencement date of the Lease, the monthly rent shall be re-computed.
 - 3.2.1. For the purpose of the adjustment for years two (2) through five (5) of the Initial Term of the Lease, the adjustment shall as set forth in Exhibit "B" attached hereto. The minimum monthly rent payable following an adjustment under the terms of this subsection shall continue at the adjusted level until the next adjustment period.
 - 3.2.2. For the purpose of the adjustment for year five (5) of the Initial Term of the Lease, and for all subsequent odd years until the end of the Lease term, the resulting monthly rent shall be equal to the base rent provided for the current year of the Lease, multiplied

by the ratio of the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index (CPI), All Urban Consumers, West, all items published by the United States Department of Labor, Statistics (1982-84 = 100 base). If the CPI is changed or discontinued, the most nearly comparable official price index of the United States Government shall be used for computing the foregoing adjustments of minimum rent, after converting the existing index as of the base rate to the new index. The minimum monthly rent payable following an adjustment under the terms of this subsection shall continue at the adjusted level until the next adjustment period or the end of the Lease term, whichever occurs first.

- 3.3 <u>CHARGE FOR LATE PAYMENT</u>: Lessee hereby acknowledges that the late payment of rent or any other sums due hereunder will cause Lessor to incur costs not contemplated by this Lease. Such costs include, but are not limited to, administrative processing of delinquent notices, increased accounting costs, and loss of interest income. Accordingly, if any payment due to Lessor is not received by Lessor within fifteen (15) days after the due date, a late charge shall be added to the payment. The total sum shall become immediately due and payable to the Lessor. The late charge shall be ten percent (10%) of the unpaid balance. The late charge is in addition to interest as provided in Section 15.4.
- 3.4 <u>UTILITIES</u>: Lessee acknowledges that Lessor provides utilities to the Premises, which may include but are not limited to, gas, electricity, water, sewer and refuse collection services. For utilities provided to the Premises, Lessee shall pay as additional rent, the sum of \$______, and shall be paid to Lessor as provided in Section 3.1 This additional rent paid for utilities shall be calculated using the Lessor's electric bills for the previous calendar year and averaging the electric surcharge for each hangar on the South Side Hangars and Lights meter. This newly adjusted surcharge will be applied starting January of each year through December and added to the Lease invoice.

Lessee also agrees to reimburse Lessor for any and all expenses Lessor incurs in modifying existing utilities for Lessee's benefit relating to possession and use of Premises. Lessor shall in no event be liable to Lessee for any interruption in the service of any utility furnished to the Premises howsoever caused, provided that such interruption is not caused by the intentional act or omission of Lessor or its authorized representatives. This Lease shall continue in full force and effect despite any such interruptions.

4. USE OF PREMISES

- 4.1. Lessee shall use the Premises solely for construction, installation, maintenance and repair of a hangar, storage of aircraft and related parts and equipment. Lessee further agrees any activity, including, but not limited to, repair and maintenance of aircraft in the storage area which violates any laws, rules or regulations, including, but not limited to, any Building or Fire Codes, causes structural or other damage to any property of the Lessor, including on, above and below surfaces, or detracts from a clean and orderly appearance of the Airport or storage space is prohibited.
- 4.2. Lessee shall provide his or her own lock and key and shall provide a duplicate key to Lessor.
 - 4.3. Any and all commercial activities on the premises are strictly prohibited.
- 4.4. Lessee agrees to limit all repairs, maintenance, installation or other activity service performed on the aircraft to the extent permitted by the Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") rules, regulations and requirements.

- 4.5. Only within the hangar, Lessee shall store and keep airworthy aircraft (those that have a current annual inspection certificate or deemed airworthy by the Airport Manager) or aircraft undergoing repair or construction (as determined so by the Airport Manager) (collectively, the "Aircraft") and parts and equipment directly related to the Aircraft, all of which must be owned or leased by Lessee while located on the Premises.
 - 4.5.1. <u>ASSEMBLY OF AIRCRAFT</u>: If Lessee wishes to assemble an aircraft in a hangar and cannot initially obtain an FAA registration number and/or aircraft liability insurance, Lessee shall provide proof of registration and insurance, within one year of execution of this Lease. Any request for an extension of this one year period shall not be unreasonably refused by Lessor.

5. CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

Lessee shall construct or cause to be constructed a portable hangar on the Premises within ninety (90) days after the execution of this Lease. The plans and specifications and location of the hangar must be approved in writing by the Director of Parks and Recreation, or designee, before construction begins. Minimum standards for construction of portable hangars are on file at the Tracy Municipal Airport and Development Services located at City Hall. All permits related to the construction of the hangar must be acquired from the City of Tracy prior to the start of any construction. Lessee shall pay for all labor done or materials furnished in the construction, repair, replacement, development, or improvement of the hangar by Lessee, and shall keep Premises and Lessee's possessory interest fee and clear of any lien or encumbrance of any kind whatsoever created by Lessee's act or omission. All contractors and/or construction personnel must comply with all rules and regulations of every agency having jurisdiction over the Airport. The Contractor, in addition to and not by way of limitation of any other provision in this Lease, shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Tracy (including its elected officials, officers, agents, volunteers, and employees) from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including court costs and attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of Lessee's performance of the activities granted by way of this agreement. Any request for an extension of the ninety (90) day time period shall be reviewed by the Lessor. If Lessee commences construction without Lessor's written consent, then Lessee shall be in violation of this Lease, and Lessor, at its sole discretion may terminate this Lease.

6. REGISTRATION OF AIRCRAFT

owing air	craft:
Aircraft l	No. (s)
Aircraft l	Make/Model(s)
Aircraft I	Registered Owner (s) (All registered owners of the aircraft must be listed)
Register	red Owner (s) Emergency Phone Number (s)
	red Owner (s) Emergency Phone Number (s) Owner (s) Insurance Company/Policy Number(s)

6.1 AIRCRAFT REGISTRATION INFORMATION: Lessee will store on the Premises only the

Lessee, or approved sublessee, must be listed as one of the registered owners of the aircraft.

6.2 <u>CHANGES IN AIRCRAFT</u>: Lessee shall provide to Lessor all information set forth in Section 6.1, prior to (i) substitution of the aircraft, (ii) change in the ownership of the aircraft, or (iii) changes of addresses and telephone numbers of Lessee and other registered owner(s) of the aircraft.

7. TAXES

Lessee shall pay, before delinquency, all taxes, assessments, license fees, and other charges which are levied against Premises and Lessee's personal property located on the Premises and which become payable during the term of this Lease. Notice is hereby given that pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 107.6, this Lease may create a possessory interest and, in that event, Lessee is hereby obligated to pay any and all real property taxes levied on said possessory interest.

8. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Lessee, its agents, employees and contractors, at all times, shall keep the Premises and common areas of the Airport free of non-contained Hazardous Materials to the extent caused by Lessee or its agents, employees or contractors. Lessee may keep, up to five (5) gallons of fuel and shall be stored in approved containers for the appropriate fuel being stored. Storage of more than five (5) gallons of fuel requires review and a permit from the South San Joaquin County Fire Authority. Lessee shall not generate, manufacture, release, or dispose of Hazardous Materials in, on, or about the Premises or the common areas of the Airport.

Lessee acknowledges that it is responsible for compliance during the entire term of the Lease with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations relating to the emission into the air, discharge onto lands and ground and surface waters, storage, use, and disposal of hazardous or toxic materials, substances, and wastes (collectively, "Hazardous Materials"), and all other federal, state, and local environmental laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Premises. Lessee shall not store, use, or dispose of on the Premises or the Airport grounds any Hazardous Materials on the Premises or Airport grounds except in strict compliance with all Environmental Laws.

If Lessee or any of its sublessees causes or contributes to any soil, air, groundwater, surface water, or other environmental contamination (collectively "Environmental Contamination"), or if any Environmental Contamination is attributable to any Hazardous Materials brought onto the Premises or the Airport grounds by Lessee or any of its sublessees, Lessee shall at its sole expense promptly take all investigatory and/or remedial action reasonably required for the remediation of such Environmental Contamination. Prior to undertaking any investigatory or remedial action, however, Lessee shall first obtain Lessor's approval of any proposed investigatory or remedial action. Should Lessee fail at any time to promptly take such action, Lessor may enter the Premises and undertake such action at Lessee's sole cost and expense, and Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for all such expenses within thirty (30) days of being billed for those expenses, and any amount not paid within that thirty (30) day period shall thereafter be deemed delinquent rent.

Lessee further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Lessor and its successors in interest for any claims, damages, judgments, awards, penalties or costs arising from any

Hazardous Materials brought to the Premises or Airport on behalf of Lessee or any Hazardous Materials spilled at the Airport by Lessee or Lessee's agents, employees or contractors.

"Hazardous Materials" shall include, but not be limited to, substances defined as "hazardous substances," "hazardous materials," or "toxic substances" in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 USC § 9601, et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 USC § 1801 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 USC § 6901 et seq.; and those substances defined as "hazardous wastes" in Section 25117 of the California Health and Safety Code or as "hazardous substances" in Section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code and in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to said laws.

9. INDEMNIFICATION

Lessee shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Lessor from and against any claims arising out of this Lease or caused in any way by Lessee's use of the Premises or failure to comply with obligations under this Lease, except to the extent caused by the sole, active negligence or willful misconduct of the Lessor.

In this section, "Lessor" means the City of Tracy, its officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers; "Lessee" means the Lessee, its employees, agents and subcontractors; "Claims" includes claims, demands, actions, losses, damages, injuries, and liability, direct or indirect (including any and all related costs and expenses) and any allegations of these; and "Arising out of" includes "pertaining to" and "relating to".

The provisions of this section survive the termination of this Lease, and are not limited by the provisions of Section 11 relating to insurance.

10. INSURANCE

Lessee shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the Lease Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may arise from or in connection with the Lessee's construction, operation and use of the Leased Premises. The cost of such insurance shall be borne by the Lessee.

- 10.1 Coverage shall be at least as broad as:
- 10.1.1 Aviation Liability insurance coverage on a per occurrence basis which insures against all liability of City and its agents arising out of and in connection with Lessee's use of an aircraft associated with this agreement.
- 10.1.2 Property insurance against all risks of loss to any tenant improvements or betterments.
- 10.2 Lessee shall maintain limits no less than:
- 10.2.1 Aircraft/Aviation Liability: \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury or property damage.
- 10.2.2 Property Insurance: Full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty provisions.
- 10.3 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the Lessee shall

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

- 10.4 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to City, its elected officials, officers, agents, employees or volunteers.
- 10.5 Each insurance policy required under this Lease Agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage, scope or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to City.
- 10.6 Each insurance policy required under this Lease Agreement shall name the City of Tracy as an additional named insured.
- 10.7 Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to do business in the State of California.
- 10.8 Lessee shall furnish City with original certificates and endorsements effecting coverage required under this Lease Agreement. The certificates and endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All documents are to be received and approved by City before this Lease commences. Thereafter, insurance certificates and endorsements must be submitted to Lessor annually to show proof of insurance.

11. FORCE MAJEURE

Except as to the payment of rent, neither of the parties hereto shall be chargeable with, liable for, or responsible to, the other for anything or in any amount for any delay caused by fire, earthquake, explosion, the elements, acts of God, riots, strikes or lockouts, and any delay due to said causes or any of them shall not be deemed a breach of or default in the performance of this Lease.

12. EMINENT DOMAIN

If all or any part of the premises is taken as a result of condemnation proceedings by a public entity other than the City of Tracy, in the lawful exercise of the power of eminent domain, either party hereto may terminate this Lease by providing written notice thereof to the other party, which notice shall be effective thirty (30) days after the date of mailing.

13. RIGHT OF ENTRY

Lessee shall permit Lessor's authorized agents the right and privilege of entering the Premises for the purposes of inspection, determining whether the terms of this Lease are being kept and performed, and posting notices of nonresponsibility. Lessee shall be given twenty-four (24) hours' notice by Lessor of any entry or inspection, except in an emergency.

14. SUBLETTING/ASSIGNMENT/SALE

14.1 Neither this Lease nor any interest herein shall be assigned, either voluntarily or involuntarily, by Lessee, or by operation of law or otherwise, nor shall Premises, or any part thereof, be sublet or sold by Lessee without the prior written consent of Lessor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any such assignment, sublease or sale without such prior written consent of Lessor shall be void. If Lessee attempts to make or allows to be made any subleasing, encumbrance, assignment, sale or other transfer without the prior written consent and approval of Lessor, then any of the foregoing events shall be deemed a breach of the conditions and restrictions of this Lease, and upon such breach, Lessor may, at its option,

terminate this Lease at once by written notice, and upon such termination this Lease shall end and be of no further force.

- 14.1.1 Unless otherwise agreed to by Lessor, no assignment, even with Lessor's approval, shall relieve Lessee of its obligations under this Lease, and Lessee shall continue to be primarily liable, not as guarantor or surety, to the same extent as though no assignment had been made
- 14.1.2 A change of control of Lessee will constitute an assignment. If Lessee is (a) a corporation, the stock of which is not publicly traded over a national exchange, or (b) an unincorporated association, limited liability company, or partnership, the transfer, assignment, or hypothecation of any stock or ownership interest, or voting control in such corporation, association, limited liability company, or partnership in the aggregate in excess of fifty percent (50%), whether in one or in multiple transactions, will be deemed an assignment for purposes of this section. Notwithstanding the above, the transfer, assignment, or hypothecation of any stock or ownership interest, or voting control of a corporation, association, limited liability company, or partnership in the aggregate, whether in one or multiple transactions, such that less than fifty percent (50%) of the stock or ownership interest, or voting control of a corporation, association, limited liability company, or partnership remains in the original Lessee, such transfer, assignment, or hypothecation of any stock or ownership interest, or voting control of a corporation, association, limited liability company, or partnership will be deemed an assignment for purposes of this section.
- 14.2 <u>SUBLEASE</u>: Lessee is permitted to sublease the Premises subject to the following conditions:
 - 14.2.1 Lessee shall use the sublease provisions attached here to as Exhibit "C"
 - 14.2.2 Prior to any occupancy of the Premises by a sublesse, Lessee shall require the sublessee to provide evidence of insurance in accordance with the provisions of Section 10.
 - 14.2.3 Lessee shall provide a copy of the sublease agreement and certificate of sublease insurance to Lessor within thirty (30) days following occupancy of Premises by the sublessee.
 - 14.2.4 All building improvements and alterations constructed on the Premises shall have been approved by City pursuant to Section 5 of this Lease
 - 14.2.3 Lessee shall remain liable under this Lease;
 - 14.2.4 Each sublease shall contain a provision satisfactory to Lessor requiring the sublessee, if Lessor shall so demand, to attorn to Lessor if Lessee defaults under this Lease, and if the sublessee is notified of Lessee's default and instructed to make sublessee's rental payments to Lessor, but Lessor shall have no obligation to recognize the sublessee or to allow any sublessee to remain in possession upon the default of Lessee.
 - 14.2.5 In accordance with federal grant assurance requirements, sublease rental rates are not to exceed established City-owned Airport hangar rental rates for similar sized hangars. The rental rates are set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto.
 - 14.2.6. The term of the sublease agreement shall not exceed the term of this Lease.

14.3 <u>SALE OF HANGAR</u>: Lessee hereby agrees that should Lessee desire to sell the hangar on the Premises, Lessee shall provide the record of bill of sale of the hangar to Lessor, within thirty (30) days of date of sale of hangar.

15. DEFAULT

- 15.1 <u>LESSEE'S DEFAULT-DEFINITION</u>: The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default by Lessee:
 - a. Failure to pay or cause to be paid any tax, assessment, insurance premium, lien, claim, charge, or demand herein provided to be paid or caused to be paid by Lessee at all times and in the manner herein provided; or
 - b. Failure to complete the construction, repair, restoration or replacement of the hangar and any other improvements in and about the Premises within the times and in the manners herein provided; or
 - c. Failure to pay rent when due or any other sum, if the failure continues for fifteen (15) days after said due date; or
 - d. Failure to use, maintain, and operate the Premises as herein required, or abandonment of the property; or
 - e. Failure to perform any other provision of this Lease, or breach of any other covenant, condition, or restriction of this Lease herein provided to be kept or performed by Lessee.
- 15.2 <u>NATURE OF NOTICE LESSEE'S OPPORTUNITY TO CURE</u>: Lessor shall have the right but not the obligation to give written notice to remedy such default. If the default is remedied within thirty (30) days following the date of notice, then this Lease shall continue in full force and effect.
- 15.3 <u>LESSEE'S DEFAULT LESSOR'S REMEDIES</u>: If Lessor's default is not remedied within thirty (30) days following the date of notice as provided in Section 15.2 above, then Lessor, may, at its option terminate this Lease, and, in addition to all of the remedies, the Lessor may re-enter and re-lease the Premises, and all improvements shall become the sole property of Lessor. Upon termination, all subleases permitted by this Lease, at the option of Lessor, shall terminate. Such termination shall not waive any remedy available to either party because of such default. In the event of default by the Lessee, Lessor may, in addition to all other remedies available in law or equity, recover all damages proximately resulting from default, including, but not limited to, the cost of recovering the Premises and attorneys' fees.
- 15.4 <u>INTEREST</u>: In the event that any sum owing hereunder is not paid within thirty (30) days after written notice that such sum is past due, such sum shall bear interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date due until paid.

16. NOTICES

Any notice required herein shall be given by first class mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties as provided below. Notices shall be deemed served three (3) working days after mailing.

LESSOR:

LESSEE:

City of Tracy

[Insert Lessee information here]

Attn: Airport Manager

[Insert address]

17. ATTORNEYS' FEES

Should any litigation result from any act or omission concerning this Lease or the premises, it is agreed that the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorney's fees and costs in addition to any other damages imposed by law.

18. SURRENDER OF PREMISES

Upon Lease expiration and/or termination, Lessee shall surrender the Premises to Lessor in good condition, excepting ordinary wear and tear. Lessee shall at its expense, return the Premises to their original state with all anchoring devices removed and any pavement breaks repaired.

After expiration or termination of the Lease, Lessor shall have a lien on any improvements in an amount sufficient to pay all expenses necessary for Lessor to return the Premises to their original state.

19. SUBORDINATION

This Lease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between the Lessor and the United States or the State of California relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of federal or state funds for the development of the Airport. Furthermore, this Lease may be amended to include provisions required by those agreements with the United States or the State of California.

20. NO EXCLUSIVE RIGHT GRANTED

It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Lease shall be construed to grant or authorize the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308a of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 (49 USC § 1349a).

21. NON-DISCRIMINATION

Lessee, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration thereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from the participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin will be excluded from

participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee will use the Premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to 49 CFR 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation, and as said regulations may be amended.

22. INTERFERENCE WITH OPERATIONS

The Lessee, by accepting this Lease, agrees for itself, its successors, and its assigns that it will not make use of the Premises in any manner that might interfere with the landing and taking off of aircraft or otherwise constitute a physical, electronic, or otherwise, including wildlife attractants. If this covenant is breached, the Lessor reserves the right to enter the Premises and cause the abatement of such interference at Lessee's expense.

23. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 23.1 LESSOR WARRANTIES: Lessor covenants and warrants that:
 - a. It has lawful title and right to make this Lease;
- b. It will, subject to the provisions of the Lease, maintain Lessee in full and exclusive possession of the premises; and
- c. If Lessee shall perform all the agreements, covenants, and conditions required by this Lease, Lessee may freely, peaceably, and quietly occupy and enjoy the premises without interference of any person.
- 23.2 <u>TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE</u>: Time is of the essence of each provision of this Lease. Any reference in this Lease to "days" shall mean calendar days unless specifically noted to the contrary.
- 23.3 <u>SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS</u>: This Lease shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties, their successors, and assignees.
- 23.4 <u>APPLICABLE LAWS</u>: This Lease shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
- 23.5. <u>COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS</u>: Lessee shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, whether or not those laws are expressly stated in this Lease
- 23.6 <u>MECHANICS LIENS</u>: Lessee shall keep the Leasehold free from any and all mechanics liens.
- 23.7 <u>MODIFICATION</u>: This Lease cannot be amended or modified except by a written instrument signed by both parties.
- 23.8 <u>CAPTIONS</u>: The captions of this Lease shall have no effect on the interpretation of this Lease.
- 23.9 <u>SEVERABILITY</u>: The unenforceability invalidity or illegality of any provision herein shall not render the other provisions unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.
- 23.10 <u>WAIVER</u>: Waiver of any provisions herein governing the use of the Premises shall not be permanent unless executed in writing and signed by both parties.
- 23.11 <u>ENTIRE AGREEMENT</u>: This Lease and the attached Exhibit(s) comprise the entire integrated understanding between the Parties concerning each party's rights and obligations. This Lease supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements. All exhibit(s) attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

The individuals executing this Lease represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal capacity and authority to enter into and to execute this Lease.

The Parties agree to the full performance of the terms set forth here.

Lessor	Lessor
By:	By:
Title: City Manager	Title:
Date:	Date:
Attest:	Ву:
	Title:
Ву:	Date:
City Clerk	
Approved as to form	
Ву:	-
City Attorney	

EXHIBIT A

[Description of Premises]

EXHIBIT B

Description of Rental Rates

EXHIBIT B Description of Rental Rates

<u> 2020</u>				
AR Type	<u>Size</u>	Current Lease \$	Cost/Sq. Ft.	New Lease \$
AP 31 (11)	1724 ft ²	\$84.92	0.055	\$94.82
AP 32 (6)	1530 ft ²	\$74.52	0.055	\$84.15
AP 33 (8)	984 ft ²	\$54.19	0.055	\$54.12
<u>2021</u>	a ,	~		
AR Type	<u>Size</u>	Current Lease \$	Cost/Sq. Ft.	New Lease \$
AP 31 (11)	1724 ft ²	\$94.82	0.06	\$103.44
AP 32 (6)	1530 ft ²	\$84.15	0.06	\$91.80
AP 33 (8)	984 ft ²	\$54.12	0.06	\$59.04
<u>2022</u>				
<u>AR Type</u>	<u>Size</u>	Current Lease \$	Cost/Sq. Ft.	New Lease \$
AP 31 (11)	1724 ft ²	\$103.44	0.065	\$112.06
AP 32 (6)	1530 ft ²	\$91.80	0.065	\$99.45
AP 33 (8)	984 ft ²	\$59.04	0.065	\$63.96
Al 55 (0)	304 ft	↓ 55.0 -1	0.003	Ç03.30
<u> 2023</u>				
AR Type	<u>Size</u>	Current Lease \$	Cost/Sq. Ft.	New Lease \$
AP 31 (11)	1724 ft ²	\$112.06	0.07	\$120.68
AP 32 (6)	1530 ft ²	\$99.45	0.07	\$107.10
AP 33 (8)	984 ft ²	\$63.96	0.07	\$68.88
<u>2025</u>				
AR Type	Current Lease \$			
AP 31 (11)	\$120.68	CPI index	New Base rent	
AP 32 (6)	\$107.10	CPI index	New Base rent	
AP 33 (8)	\$68.88	CPI index	New Base rent	
2027 and al	l subsequent odd years	7		
AR Type	Current Lease \$	-		
AP 31 (11)	New base rent	CPI Index	New base rent	
AP 32 (6)	New base rent	CPI Index	New base rent	
AP 33 (8)	New base rent	CPI Index	New base rent	

EXHIBIT "_____"

REQUIRED SUBLEASE PROVISIONS

The Sub lessor may draft its own Sublease form. The material provisions of the following paragraphs must appear in the Sublease. Paragraphs marked with an asterisk (*) must be used ver

bat	im. The Sublease must be submitted to the Lessor <u>prior</u> to occupancy by Sublessee.
1.	Parties. This Sublease is entered into by and between ("Sublessor") and ("Sublessee") as a Sublease under the master lease ("Master Lease") dated, 20, also known as City of Tracy Ground Lease Agreement for Privately Owned Hangar and Aircraft Storage. Sublessor, under this Sublease, is Lessee, and City of Tracy is Lessor, under the Master Lease.
2.	<u>Premises</u> . Sublessor leases to Sublessee and Sublessee hires the following Premises described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein, hereinafter referred to as the "Premises," property located at hangar space #
3.	Term. The term of this Sublease Agreement shall be for, commencing, 20, and terminating, 20, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. (NOTE: The term of the Sublease Agreement shall in no way exceed the term provided in the Master Lease.)
4.	Rent. Subessee shall pay to Sublessor, as rent, the sum of \$ per month on the first day of each month for which it is due, beginning on the date term commences and continuing during the term. The rent is calculated as per square foot with the square footage of hangar being Rent for any partial month shall be prorated at the rate of 1/30th of the monthly rate for each day. All rent shall be paid to Sublessor at the address to which notices to Subessor are given. Lease rates are set by resolution of the City of Tracy City Council. The rental rates are set forth in Exhibit "B" attached to the Master Lease.
	* <u>Fair Market Value</u> : In accordance with federal grant assurance requirements, sublease rental rates are not to exceed established City-owned Airport hangar rental rates for similar sized hangars. The established rental rates are referenced on the Airports webpage on the City of Tracy website.
5.	* <u>Use of Premises</u> . 5.1. Sublessee shall use the Premises solely for construction, installation, maintenance and repair of a hangar, storage of aircraft and related parts and equipment. Sublessee further agrees any activity, including, but not limited to, repair and maintenance of aircraft in the storage area which violates any laws, rules or regulations, including, but not limited to, any Building or Fire Codes, causes structural or other damage to any

property of the City of Tracy, including on, above and below surfaces, or detracts from a clean and orderly appearance of the Airport or storage space is prohibited.

- 5.2. Any and all commercial activities on the premises are strictly prohibited.
- 5.3. Sublessee agrees to limit all repairs, maintenance, installation or other activity service performed on the aircraft to the extent permitted by the Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA") rules, regulations and requirements.
- 5.4. Only within the hangar, Sublessee shall store and keep airworthy aircraft (those that have a current annual inspection certificate or deemed airworthy by the Airport Manager) or aircraft undergoing repair or construction (as determined so by the Airport Manager) (collectively, the "Aircraft") and parts and equipment directly related to the Aircraft, all of which must be owned or leased by Sublessee while located on the Premises.

6. * Construction of Improvements.

Any alteration or construction of improvements on the Premises shall be subject to approval by the City of Tracy. The plans and specifications and location of the improvements must be approved in writing by the Director of Parks and Recreation before construction begins. Minimum standards for construction of portable hangars are on file at the Tracy Municipal Airport and Development Services located at City Hall. All permits related to the construction of the improvements must be acquired from the City of Tracy prior to the start of any construction. Sublessee shall pay for all labor done or materials furnished in the construction, repair, replacement, development, or improvement of the hangar by Sublessee, and shall keep Premises and Sublessee's possessory interest fee and clear of any lien or encumbrance of any kind whatsoever created by Sublessee's act or omission. All contractors and/or construction personnel must comply with all rules and regulations of every agency having jurisdiction over the Airport. The Contractor, in addition to and not by way of limitation of any other provision in this Sublease, shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Tracy (including its elected officials, officers, agents, volunteers, and employees) from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including court costs and attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of Sublessee's performance of the activities granted by way of this agreement. If Sublessee commences construction without City of Tracy's written consent, then Sublessee shall be in violation of this Sublease.

7. * Indemnification.

Sublessee shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of Tracy from and against any claims arising out of this Sublease or caused in any way by Sublessee's use of the Premises or failure to comply with obligations under this Sublease, except to the extent caused by the sole, active negligence or willful misconduct of the City of Tracy.

In this section, the "City of Tracy" means, the City of Tracy, its officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers; "Sublessee" means the Sublessee, its employees, agents and subcontractors; "Claims" includes claims, demands, actions, losses, damages, injuries, and liability, direct or indirect (including any and all related costs and expenses) and any allegations of these; and "Arising out of" includes "pertaining to" and "relating to".

The provisions of this section survive the termination of this Sublease, and are not limited because of the acceptance by the City of Tracy, or the deposit with the City of Tracy by Sublessee, of any of the insurance policies required by this Sublease.

8. <u>Insurance</u>.

Sublessee agrees to provide Sublessor with a Certificate of Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance meeting the insurance requirements of the Master Lease.

9. *Provisions Constituting Sublease.

This Sublease is subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Master Lease. Sublessee shall not commit or permit to be committed on the Premises any act or omission which shall violate any term or condition of the Master Lease. If Lessee defaults under the Master Lease and if Sublessee is notified of Lessee's default, and if Lessor shall so demand, Sublessee shall attorn to Lessor. Sublessee shall make Sublessee's rental payments to Lessor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor shall have no obligation to recognize the Sublessee or to allow any Sublessee to remain in possession upon the default of Lessee under the Master Lease. In the event of termination of Sublessor's interest as Lessee under the Master Lease for any reason, then this Sublease shall terminate coincidentally therewith without any liability of Sublessor or City of Tracy to Sublessee.

10. *Subordination.

This Sublease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement between the City of Tracy and the United States or the State of California relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition precedent to the expenditure of federal or state funds for the development of the Airport. Furthermore, this Sublease may be amended to include provisions required by those agreements with the United States or the State of California.

11. *No Exclusive Right Granted.

It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Sublease shall be construed to grant or authorize the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308a of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 (49 USC § 1349a).

12. *Non-Discrimination.

Sublessee, for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration thereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from the participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Sublessee will use the Premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to 49 CFR 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation, and as said regulations may be amended.

13. *Interference with Operations.

The Sublessee, by accepting this Sublease, agrees for itself, its successors, and its assigns that it will not make use of the Premises in any manner that might interfere with the landing and taking off of aircraft or otherwise constitute a physical, electronic, or otherwise, including wildlife attractants. If this covenant is breached, the City of Tracy and/or Sublessor reserves the right to enter the Premises and cause the abatement of such interference at Sublessee's expense.

14. *Right of Entry.

Sublessee shall permit City of Tracy's authorized agents the right and privilege of entering the Premises for the purposes of inspection, determining whether the terms of the Master Lease are being kept and performed, and posting notices of nonresponsibility. Sublessee shall be given twenty-four (24) hours' notice by City of Tracy of any entry or inspection, except in an emergency.

CITY OF TRACY TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING January 9, 2020

AGENDA ITEM 5.b.

REQUEST

PROVIDE UPDATES ON COMMISSION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2019/20

DISCUSSION

At the September 12, 2019 regular Transportation Advisory Commission (TAC) meeting, the commission held discussion on their goals for the current fiscal year 2019/2020.

Below are the commission recommended goals for FY 19/20 with recommended timelines.

FY19/20 Transportation Commission Goals

	GOAL	TIMELINE	SUB-COMMITTEE
	Public Outreach at Farmer's Market	Each month in conjunction with the City booth	Assignments made each commission meeting Next Dates: Spring 2020
OUTREACH	Public Outreach at Block Party Events	As scheduled in conjunction with the City booth	Assignments made each commission meeting Next Dates: Spring 2020
	Participate in City Sponsored Airport events	October 2019	
TRANSIT	Provide Input on Short Range Transit Plan Implementation	June 2020	
TRA	Provide Fare Policy Recommendation to City Council	May 2020	All

	Provide Input on Transit App Implementation	May 2020	Vaughn, Khanna
AIRPORT	Provide Input on Hangar Lease Agreement updates	Spring 2020	Silva, English
VAYS	Provide Input on Green Bikeway Implementation Plan	June 2020	Silva
BIKEWAYS	Provide Input on Updated Bikeways Master Plan	June 2020	Silva
EDUCATION	Receive presentations on areas related to the purpose of the commission	Ongoing	

In order to successfully complete each of these goals, the commissioners will form adhoc subcommittees to address each of these items by the timeline specified. It is suggested that each committee be comprised of at least 2 but no more than 3 commissioners.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund, Transportation Fund or Airport Fund for this item at this time.

RECOMENDATION

That the Commission provide updates on the commission goals and objectives for FY 2019/20.

CITY OF TRACY TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING January 9, 2020

AGENDA ITEM 7

Staff Items

Annual Commission Items:

- Election of Chair/Vice-Chair (June)
- Unmet Transit Needs (October)
- CIP Review (November/December)

Airport Project Update

By Paula Jessup

Airport Improvement Items:

Project	Current Status	Next Steps
PAPI Installation and Retrofit	- Flight Check Complete - Change Order to install electrical cable for PAPI and AWOS approved by FAA	Make adjustments to PAPI on Runway 12 Final reimbursments and grant closeout
Airport Restrooms Installation	Awaiting FAA approval.	- Solicit bids for construction.
Beacon Light Installation	Project complete.	Final reimbursements and Grant Closeout
Tee-Hangar Taxilane Pavement Reconstruction	Pavement reconstruction complete.	- Final construction punchlist - Final reimbursements and Grant Closeout
Airport Layout Plan	Grant executed by Council	- Apply for State matching grant - Public outreach meetings

<u>Transit Update</u> By Jayne Pramod

TRACER Ridership: A year to date comparison of current ridership compared to the same period in the previous year is shown below. Fixed route ridership is down 3,745 riders compared to year to date ridership in November FY18/19, a decrease of approximately 5.9% Paratransit ridership is up by 2,423 riders compared to the same time in FY18/19, an increase of approximately 31%. Overall the Tracer system ridership has decreased 1,322 riders over the same period last year, an overall decrease of approximately 1.9%

November Year To Date Ridership Comparison

	FY 18/19	FY 19/20							
Fixed Route Ridership									
Regular	14,916	12,492							
Student	9,795	9,523							
Senior	6,675	6,897							
Disabled	2,027	2,285							
Free	2,883	3,512							
Promo Passengers	13,085	9,437							
Promo Regular	4687	2,451							
Promo Student	6011	5,348							
Promo Senior	1331	1,074							
Promo ADA	642	329							
Promo Free	414	235							
Passengers w/tickets	10,891	12,570							
Passengers w/transfers	2,764	2,575							
Total	63,036	59,291							
Paratransit Ridership									
Regular (Guest)	25	89							
Senior	1,623	1,669							
Disabled	5,736	7,718							
Free	473	804							
Total	7,857	10,280							
All Systems Ridership	70,893	69,571							

Fixed Route On-Time Performance FY19/20:

	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun
A Route	89%	92%	95%	94%	95%							
B Route	86%	78%	79%	78%	79%							
C Route	84%	82%	84%	91%	94%							
D Route	89%	80%	79%	78%	79%							
E Route	97%	81%	87%	90%	97%							
F Route	98%	95%	94%	95%	96%							
G Route	99%	91%	81%	91%	91%							
OVERALL	92%	86%	86%	88%	90%							